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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
‘GULF ASHLEY MOTOR LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of GULF ASHLEY MOTOR LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended,
(“Ind AS”) and other Accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2025, and its loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAlI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the Standalone financial statements.

JInformation Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board’s report including Annexures to Board’s Report and Shareholder’s information
but does not include the Standalone financial statements and our report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form.of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Jdn connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtainan understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
tﬁat al‘ejappropnate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also




responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements that, individually or in
*aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the Standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section143 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in

agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
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(e)

(f)

(2)

(h)
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On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure “A”.

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration (other than sitting fee) is
paid by the Company to its directors during the year and hence compliance with the provisions of
section 197 does not arise.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanation given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone Financial Statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2025.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

There was no dividend declared/paid during the year by the company.



vi. Based on our examination which include test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
’ log) facility and the same was operational throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and the trail has been preserved by the
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act we, give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For M.S. Krishnaswami & Rajan
Chartered Accountants
Registration No,0]554S

M.S. Murali - Partner
Membership No. 26453

UDIN; 25026453BMFXWL5195
Date: 07 May, 2025

Place: Chennai




ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our

report of even date to the Members of Gulf Ashley Motor Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone financial statements under Clause (i)

of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
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We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements of GULF
ASHLEY MOTOR LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to Standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements included obtaining an
.understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

) a‘l,_l\ditiép)pi )n on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and disposition of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
«are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
[misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

Jn our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to Standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

.

For M.S. Krishnaswami & Rajan
Chartered Accountants
Registratign No. 015545
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M.S. Murali - Partner
Membership No. 26453

UDIN: 25026453BMFXWL5195
Date: 07 May, 2025

Place: Chennai



.AN NEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date to the members of Gulf Ashley Motor Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended March 31,
2025).

1. In respect of the Company'’s Property, Plant and Equipment:

(a) (i) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use-
assets.

(i) The company does not hold any intangible assets during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, all the items of Property, Plant and
Equipment were physically verified by the management towards the end of the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

3 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of
registered sale deeds/transfer deeds/conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that the title
deeds , of all the freehold immovable properties of land and buildings, are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date, except in respect for freehold land at Jainamore (Jharkhand)
aggregating Rs. 8.10 Lakhs and building thereon Rs. 56.45 Lakhs as per books. In respect of the
immovable property taken on lease and disclosed as Right of Use Assets in the Standalone Financial
Statements, the lease agreement is in the name of the Company.

£ (d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company
as on March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

* 2. a)As explained to us, the inventories, other than goods in transit have been physically verified during
the year by the management. The periodicity coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management were, in our opinion, appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on such verification were
given effect to in the books of accounts and does not exceed 10% for each class of inventory.

b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate,
during the year by banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The Company
has, subsequent to the end of the year, the Quarterly returns or statements filed by it during the year

¢ with such banks or financial institutions and the Stock is in agreement with the books of account of the
Company.

3. The company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans,
__secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the
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Accordingly,
(a) The Company has not provided any loan, guarantee or security to any other entity during the year.
Hence, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not provided any loan, guarantee or security to any other entity during the year.
Hence, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company has not provided any loan, guarantee or security to any other entity during the year.
Hence, reporting on the stipulation of repayment of principal and interest and the regularity thereof
under clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not provided any loan, guarantee or security to any other entity. Hence, reporting
on the amount overdue and steps taken for recovery of principal and interest under clause 3(iii)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company has not provided any loan, guarantee or security to any other entity. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed,
the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured, furnished guarantees or provided security to any party covered by provisions of sections
185 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence reporting on whether there is a compliance with the said
provisions does not arise. Investments made in earlier years are within the limits of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year and there are no unclaimed deposits as at
March 31, 2025 to which the provisions of section 73 and section 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act are applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the requirement for
maintenance of cost records pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 specified
by the Central Government of India under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the company. ‘

According to the information and explanations given to us and the books of account examined by us, in
respect of statutory dues:

(a) The company is generally regular in depositing amounts of undisputed statutory dues including

Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax,
" Service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other material statutory
-\ dues as applicable to the appropriate authorities during the year. There were no material
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undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues outstanding as at March
31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except for a
sum of Rs. 10.43 Lakhs being unpaid bonus to be transferred to Labour Welfare Fund and sum of
Rs. 2.34 Lakhs relating to interest and penalty under Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017 that remains
unpaid.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in above sub-clause, except Goods and Service tax, Value
Added Tax and Service Tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute with the
relevant authorities. Goods and Service tax, Value Added Tax and Service Tax dues which have not
been deposited on account of dispute are as under:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Rs. In Lakhs Period to which | Forum where it is
Statute Dues the amount relates | pending
to
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 87.85 FY 2012-13 to FY | Commissioner of GST
2015-16 & Excise
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 49.81 FY 2017-18 Commissioner of
Service Tax,
Jamshedpur
Gujarat VAT Value Added 3.20 FY 2016-17 & FY | Deputy
Tax 2017-18 Commissioner of
State Tax, Rajkot
Gujarat VAT Value Added 2.86 FY 2016-17 & FY | Deputy
Tax 2017-18 Commissioner of
State Tax, Rajkot
Uttar Pradesh VAT | Value Added 112.50 FY 2017-18 Deputy
Tax Commissioner of
State Tax, Varanasi
Sector-2
Uttar Pradesh VAT | Value Added 2.00 FY 2017-18 Deputy
Tax Commissioner of
State Tax, Varanasi
Sector-2
Goods and Service | GST 1836.40 FY 2017-18 to FY | First Appellate
Tax Act, 2017 2021-22 Authority,
Commissioner
(Appeals), CGST,

Central Excise &
Customs, Jamshedpur

Goods and Service | GST 2.00 FY 2017-18 First Appellate
Tax Act, 2017 Authority,
Commissioner
(Appeals), CGST,
Central Excise &
Customs, Guwahati

Goods and Service | GST 12.69 FY 2017-18 Second Appellate
Authority,  Tribunal
(To be constituted),




CGST, Central Excise
& Customs, Guwahati

Goods and Service
Tax Act, 2017

GST

101.31

FY 2018-19

First Appellate
Authority,
Commissioner
(Appeals), CGST,
Central Excise &
Customs,
Gandhidham.

Goods and Service
Tax Act, 2017

GST

485.46

FY 2017-18

First Appellate
Authority,
Commissioner
(Appeals), CGST,
Central Excise &
Customs,
Gandhidham

Goods and Service
Tax Act, 2017

GST

67.59

FY 2019-20

First Appellate
Authority,
Commissioner
(Appeals), CGST,
Central Excise &
Customs,
Gandhidham

Goods and Service
Tax Act, 2017

GST

77.13

FY 2020-21

First Appellate
Authority,
Commissioner
(Appeals), CGST,
Central Excise &
Customs,
Gandhidham

Goods and Service
Tax Act, 2017

GST

910.92

FY 2017-18

Second Appellate
Authority,  Tribunal
(To be constituted),
CGST, Central Excise
& Customs, Varanasi

Goods and Service
Tax Act, 2017

GST

85.11

FY 2018-19

First Appellate
Authority,
Commissioner
(Appeals), CGST,
Central Excise &
Customs,
Bhubaneswar, Odisha

Goods and Service
Tax Act, 2017

GST

87.22

FY 2018-19,
FY 2019-20 & FY
2021-21

First Appellate
Authority,
Commissioner
(Appeals), CGST,
Central Excise &
Customs,
Bhubaneswar, Odisha




8. As per the information and explanation given to us, there were no transactions that are previously not
recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

9. (a) According to information and explanation given to us, there is no default in repayment of dues to
any bank or financial institution. The Company does not have any borrowings from Government or by
way of Debentures.

(b) As per the information and explanation given to us, the company has not been declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) As per the information and explanation given to us, the monies raised by way of term loans have
been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) According to information and explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the
Standalone financial statements of the company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie,
not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the company.

(e) The company does not have any subsidiaries or associate companies. The Joint Venture is under
liquidation and accordingly, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of the said Joint venture and therefore provisions of Clause 3(ix)(e) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(f) The company does not have any subsidiaries or associate companies. The Joint Venture is under
liquidation and accordingly, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of the said Joint venture and therefore provisions of Clause 3(ix)(e) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

10. (a) As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not raised any monies by way
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence
reporting under the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares (covered by section 42 and section 62 (1)c of the Companies Act, 2013) or fully or partly
convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

11. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither came across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any
such case by the management.

-__(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
/Nﬁz‘gfi&b?é?dqnw with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
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13,
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and explanation given to us, a report under section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the
Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(c) As per the information and explanation given to us, there are no whistle-blower complaints received
during the year by the company up to the date of this report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us all transactions with
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable. The details of the transactions during the year have been disclosed in the Standalone
Financial Statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standards. (Refer note 3.8 to Standalone
Financial Statements).

(a) In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit issued to the Company
during the year, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions during the year, with its
Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group
does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated
whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

° 17. The company has incurred cash losses of Rs.2.44 Crores during the financial year covered by our audit

and has incurred cash loss of Rs. 0.05 Crores in the immediately preceding financial year.

= i‘ﬁ’."_’ﬁf}i re has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly,
\BLE Y. Bly

f orting under Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable,



d 19. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of: (i) the financial ratios,

(ii) ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, (iii)
other information accompanying the Standalone financial statements, (iv) our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and (v) based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. For this purpose, we have considered and relied upon the support letter
provided by the holding company to discharge the liabilities of the company as and when they fall due,
if required. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

20. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section
135 is not applicable to the company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause3(xx) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

21. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company does not have any Subsidiary/
Associate and the joint venture is under liquidation. Further the reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the
Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment
in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For M.S.Krishnaswami & Rajan
Chartered Accountants

AN
A\t ¢

* M.S. Murali- Partnér
Membership No: 026453
UDIN: 25026453BMFXWL5195
Date: 07 May, 2025
Place: Chennai



Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025

As at
Particulars Note March 31, 2024
Rs. Crores
ASSETS
Non-current asseis
Property, plant and equipment 1.3 8.77
Right-of-use asset 114 141
Financiaj assets
{i) Investments 1.2 0,02
{ii) Other financial assels 13 0.09
Deferred lax assels (net) 1.4 0.96
Income tax assets (net) 1.5 [OF]
Other non-curmrent assels 1.6 0.16
10.12
Current assets
Inventories 1.7 22,42
Financiat assets
{i) Trada receivables 1.8 23.28
(i7) Cash and cash equivalenis 1.08A 0.45
(i) Bank balances other than (i) above 1.098 5.03
{iv} Other financial assets 110 0.21
Conlzact Assels 11414 0.95
Other currant assets 1.12 10.76
63.10
TOTAL ASSETS 73.22
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 29.70
Olher equity {24.74)
4,96
Liabilities
Non-current Habilitios
Financiai liabilities
(i) Barrowings .15 -
{ii} Lease fizbilities 1.68
Provisions 1.16 0.85
2.53
Current liabilitles
Financial liabitties
(i} Borowings 1,17 19,50
(iiy Lease liabillies 0.43
(iii) Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
b} Total outstanding dues of creditors cther than micro enterprises 118
and smali enlerprises ’ 41,52
(iv) Othar financial liabilities 1.19 1.03
Contract fiabilities 1.20 2.00
Provisions 1.29 0.61
Other current liabilities 1.22 0.64
Current tax liabilities (net} -
65.73
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2.92" 73.22
ng noles.

The above Balance Sheet should be read in canjunction with the accompanyi

M.S5.Murali
Parinar -
Membership No: 026453
UDIN: 25026453BMFXAL5195

Place:Chennal

Date: Wo;.j ?A 203\@“

For and on behalf of the Board of the Directors

Sanjeev Kumar

Chairman

DIN:07255308

L/

e

Srinath N
Chief Financial Officer

Mohit Goleha
Additional Director and CEO
DiN:10473201

Y,

Rama‘éhlériaran vV

Company Secretary




Gulf Ashiey Motor Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

N : Year ended
Partlculars ofe |: March 31, 2024
Rs. Crores
Income
Revenue from operalions 21 265.12

Other incomsa ’ 2.2 0.40
Total Itcome 265.52
Expenses

Purchases of stock-in-trade 259.72

Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade 23 ¢ {10.30)

249.42
Employee benefits expense 24 7.88
Finance costs 25 | 1.76
Depreciation and amorlisation expense 26 | 1.14

Olher expenses 27 6.60
Total Expenses 266.80
Profit before excepticnal items and tax (1.28)
Exceptionat items -
Profit before tax (1.28)
Tax expense:

Current tax - Charge -

Deferred tax {0.24)

{0.34)
Profit / {Loss} for the year (0.94}
Loss from discontinued operations
Profit{{Loss) for the year {0.94}
Other Comprehensive {Loss) f Income
A (i} ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
- Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans {0.05)
{ii) Income lax refating to items that will not be reclassified lo Profit or Loss -
B (i) emns that will be reclassified ta Profit or Loss
- Effective portion of gains and loss on designated portion of
hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge -
- Gain/{L.oss) on fair valuation of loans -

{#) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified lo Profit or Loss -
Exchange differences in iranstating the financial statements of foreign operations -
Total Other Comprehensive {Loss)/incoine (0.05)
‘Totat Comprehensive income for the year “{3.07) {0.99)
Earnings per share (Face vaiue Re. 100 each) 3.3

-Basic (in Rs.) {13.48) {3.17)
-Diluted (in Rs.} {13.48) 3.47)
The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
For and on behalf of the Board of the Direclors
For M.8.Krishnaswami & Rajan .
Chartered Accauntants '
;ﬁ/ﬂ’f‘ﬁ’
M.S.Murali L e, ~~"Sanjeev Kumar Mohit Golcha
Partner I Chairman Additional Direclor and CEQ
Membership No: 026453 e DIN:D72565308 DiN:10473201
UDIN: 250264538MFXWL5195 FCTIE S R Y
- / : N \
Place: Chennal SRS RUR AP Srinath N Ramacha'i;dra_ﬁ/\.f

Date; M% Z éﬂgﬂ,s e Chiaf Financial Officer  Company Secrelary

.



Guif Ashiey Motor Limited

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

X Year ended
Fariiculars “Mdrchia1,;2025°| March a1, 2024
S R Crope! Rs. Crores
Cash tlow frem aperating activities
Profit for the year {0.94}
Adjusiments for :
Tax expense charge/ (credit) - nel (0,34}
Depracialion and amaorlisation expense 072
Deprecialion of Right-of-use assat 0.42
impairment / {(Reversal) of {oss allowance, write off on trade receivable / ather receivable (nal) (C.20}
Profil on szla of Prapearty, plant and equipment {FPE) and intangible assets - nel 2.0
Finance cosls 1.76
interesl incoma (0.33}
Operating profit before working capital changes 1.08
Adjusiments for changes in:
Trade receivables 1.84
Invenlories {10.30}
Other non-cusrent and current financial assets o0
Gther non-current and current assels {2.68}
Trade payablas 14.35
Nan-current and cusrent financial hiabililias (0.23}
Coantracd liabilities {2.35}
Contraci Assets (0.61}
QOther current liabilities 015
Other non-current and current provisions 0.43
Cash from operatlons 1.79
Income tax paid (net of refunds, if any) 0.62
Net cash fron operating activitles {All: 1.84
Cash flow from Investing activilies
Purchiase of PPE and intangible assets (0.60}
Proceeds on sale of PPE and intangible assets including sale of immovable properties {0.00}
Investment in bank deposils {1.00)
Interest received 0.30
net cash from / (used in) investing aclivitles =3 E {1.30}
Cash flow from financing activitles
Repayments of non-curant barrowings -
Proceads fram cusrent bofrowings 1.50
Repayments of current borrowings -
Payments of Lease liability (0.72)
Interest paid (1.89)
Dividend paid -
Nes cash used In financing activities <] {0.84)
Net cash [nflow / {Quitiow) [A+B+C]]: {0.40)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 0.85
Closing cash and cash equivalents [Refer Note 1.09A to the standalane financial slatements) 0.45

For M.S.Krishnaswami & Rajan
Charlerad Accountants

FRN N 545

.S Hurall
Parner
Membership No: 026453
UDIN: 250264538MFEXWLE18S

Place: Chennat

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For and on behalf of the Board of lhe Rirectors

£ % 4
YAy
RTRLErg LNy o
i i
=" Ganjasv Kumar Mahit Golcha
i Chaiman  Additionai Direclor and CEO
DiN:G?Zﬁ.’)SOB/ DI 10473201
% .
Srinath N

k2

Ramaman_qr:au)l
Chtaf Financial Officer Company Secrelay

Date: f‘f&ﬁ 7; ‘2_02_5“




Gulf Ashiey Motor Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.  For the year ended March 31, 2025

A. Equity Share Capital

Rs. Crores

Balance at the beginning of April 1, 2024

Changes in equity share capital
during the year

Batance at the end
of March 31, 2025

29.70 - 29.70
B. Other Equity
Rs. Crores
R d Other
esServels an Comprehensive
urpius Income
Particulars Total
Retained Cash Flow
Earnings Hedge Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of April 1, 2024 (24.74) - (24.74)
Profit for the year (4.00) - (4.00)
Other comprehensive (loss) 0.03 - 0.03
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (3.97} - (3.97)
Transactions with owners:
Dividends paid / payable - - -
Balance as af the end of March 31, 2025 {28.71) - (28.71)
Other comprehensive income comprise of Acturial Gain/(Loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit plans.
Notes: (a) Dividends declared/paid during the year and Amounts transferred to Retained Earnings Rs.NIL. (FY 2023-
24 Rs.NIL)
(b} Share application maney pending allotement, Equiity Component of Compound Financial Instrument, Capital
Reserves, Securities Premium, DabtEquity instruments through OCI, Effective portion of Cash Flow hedges,
Revaluation surplus, etc, Rs.NIL (FY 2023-24 Rs.NiL)
This is the statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

The above Stalement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
For and on hehalf of the Board of the Directors

For M.S. Krishnaswami & Rajan
Chartered Accountants
FRN NQ: 015548

s b Aoy, e
i DLR.}(.SE'?\ "q-

M.S.Murali
Pariner
Membership No: 026453

UDIN: 25026453BMFXWL5195

Ptace: Chennai

202.8"

i}w”g"'/
-

ﬁé'ﬁiéev Kumar
Chairman
DIN:07255308

Srinath N
Chief Financial Officer

Mohit Golcha

Additional Director and CEQ

DIN:10473201

Ramachénqrén Y
Company Setretary

Date: fasd Z,
>




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

2. Forthe year ended March 31, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

Rs. Crores

Balance at the beginning of April 14,2023

Changes in equity share capital

Balance at the end

29.70 - 25.70 |
B. Other Equity
Rs. Crores
Gther
Reserves and Comprehensive
Surplus Income
Particulars Total

Retatned Cash Flow

Earnings Hedge Reserve
Balance as at the baginning of April 1, 2023 (23.75) - {23.75)
Profit for the year {0.94) - (0.94)
Other comprehensive (loss) (0.05) - {0.05)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year {0.99) - {0.99)
Transactions with owners:
Dividends paid / payable - - -
Balance as at the end of March 31, 2024 {24.74) - (24.74)

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the ag

companying noles.




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

14
Rs. Crores
: E s
9 101.04.2024| Add turing_ |
S R R | theyear
Fregheld land 0.88 -
Buildings 4.98 0.20
Plant and equipment - 3.43 0.21
Furnilure and fittings 1.0 0.12
Vehicles including elecric vehicles 1.7¢ 0.15
Office equipment 0.64 0.03
Total 13.33 0.26 - 6.56 0,71
Notes:

1. Title io Freehold Land at Jainamore, Jharkhand (carrying value Rs.0.08 Grores) is yet to be conveyed to tha Company.

2. Amount of coniractual commitiments for acquisition of property,plant and eguipment: Nil

3. Exchange Loss / {Gain) capitatised, borrowing cost capitalised and expenditure in the course of construction RsNit (2023.24 Rs.Nil)

4. No proceedings have been iniiated during the year or are pending against ihe Company as at March 31, 2025 for hoiding any benami properly under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1488 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

5, lmpairment loss recognized during the pericd Rs. NIL(FY 2023-24 Nil)
8. No revalualion of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) has been carried out during the financial year 202425

e
i

Ir ;7 i\.k‘."z()\'




Gulf Ashley Mofor Limited

nexed to and forming part of
QUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORKCIN-

atements

Notes an the standalone financial st

441 PROPERTY, PLANT ANDE

ROGRESS
fis, Croves

 GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ( COST)  peeneammod
“Charge
24 04.04.2023 “during the

1 131.03.20
' year
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ictes including electric vehicles
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Plont and equipment




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

1.1A RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

Rs. Crores
: : g NeCarrvmg
Description ount it iatic ount -

Building 1.41 1,13 0.59
Total 1.41 113 0.59

Notes:

i Escalation clause - the percentage of escalationisuptoa maximum of 156%.

2. Discounting rate used for the purpose of ,computing right to use asset is 8.5%.

3. Rental amount per annum ranges from Rs. 0.01 crores to Rs. 0.5 crores, which also carries a clause for
extension of agreement pased an mutuai understanding between Lassor and Lessee.

4. The lease petiod ranges from 2 years to 11 years over which the right to use asset is depreciated on a
straight line basis. '




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

1AA RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

Rs. Crores

T Net Ganrying | R E ey Net Carrying
Description ' | Amount . p Additions . ‘pepreiation | Amount
Building 1.08 (0.15) 0.42 A Al
Total 1.98 (0.15) 0.42 | s 1:41
Notes:

4. Escatation clause - the percentage of escalation is up to a maximum of 15%.
2. Discounting rate used for the purpose of ,computing right to use asset is 8.5%

3. Rental amount per annum ranges from Rs. 0,01 crores to Rs. 0.5 crores, which also carries @ clause for

extension of agreement hased on mutual understanding between Lessor and Lessee.
4. The lease period ranges from 2 years to 11 years over which the right lo use asset is depreciated on a

straight line hasis.




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

1.2 NON-CURRENT FINANGIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS

DESCRIPTION As at March 31, 2024

Nos Rs. Crores

A) Investmanis in Equity Instruments (unquoted) {fully paid up
unless otherwise siated) '
1y Joint Ventures {at cost}
Equity Shares of Rs.0.01 each
Ashok Leyland John Deere Construction Equipment Company |-

brivate Limited {under liquidation} 1,60,64,853 0.02

Sub Total, 1,60,64,853 0.02

Less: Impairment in Value of Investments

Ashok Leyland John Deere Construction Equipment Company i
Private Limited (undef liquidation)

Aggregate of Impairment in Vatue of jnvestments

Sub Total 0.02

0.02

Total

Notes: PTO




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

4.2 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:
Rs, Crores
1.[Particutars March 34, 2028] March 31, 2024
R 0.02

Aggregate valus of unquoted invesiments

Aggregate value of quoted invesiments
Aggregate value of impairment in value of investmenits

T "‘-w,..:a( v«:; .
s

1 2
A



Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

i \ S As at
‘March 31;2025 | March 31, 2024
1.3 NON-CURRENT - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS TRes. Crores | Rs Crores
v nsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) :
a) Seourity daposits
Cansidered good 0.09
Considered doubtful 0.34
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables 0.34
0.09
8.09

Notes:

1. These are carried at amortised cost.

2. Movement in allowance for doubtful security deposits is a8 follows:
Particuiars
Qpening

Add: Additions
Less: Uiilisations / Reversals .

Closing




Gu!f Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

As at
March 31, 2024
1.4 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) | Rs.Crores
a) Deferred tax liabilities {0.38)
b) Deferred tax {assets) 1.34
0.96




- Gul Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

March 31;2025 ] March 31,2024
15 NON-CURRENT - INCOME TAX ASSETS {NET) T Re.Crores..j Rs.Crores

Advance income tax {net of pravisian)

pasty
q;\\}(: o

- LN

2
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Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

ias Asatl Asat |
“March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
1.6 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS “iRe. Crores | Rs.Crores
{Unsecured, considared good unless otherwise stated)
a) Capital advances
i. Advances to related parties -
Considered good
i, Others
Considered good 0,16
018
b) Balances with Government Authorities - Goods and Services Tax, Customs Dudy, Port Trust
Charges, Central Excise Duty etc.
(including paid under protest)
0.16
Note :
1. Movement in allowance for doubtful advances towards capital advances is as follows:
Particuiars March 2025 March 2024
Opening - {0.186)

Add: Additions
Less: Utifisations / Reversals
[Closing

Duly, Port Trust Charges, Central Excise Dugy etc. is as follows: v

2. Movement in allowance for doubtful balances towards batances with Government Authorities - Goods and Services Tax, Customs

Pariiculars

March 2025

WMarch 2024

Opening
Add: Additions
Less: Utilisations

|Closing




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

o As at
| March 31, 2024
1.7 INVENTORIES Rs. Crores
{a) Raw materials and components -
(b} Work-in-progress -
(c) Finished goods -
(a) Stock-in-trade .
Commaercial Vehicies : 18.30
Spare parts and auto components (including works rade) 7.27
Stores, spares and consumable tools -
25,57
Less: Allowance for obsolesence {3.15)
L_ 22.42

Notes:

March 2025 Warch 2024 |

T, Goods-in-transit included above are as helow

{a} Stock-in-trade {commaercial vahictes and spare paris) 1.1 16.48

2 Cost of inventaries (including cost of stock-in-trade purchased and write down of inventories) recognised as an expense during the
year are Rs,224 84 crores (2023-24: Rs.249.42 crores).

As at As at
March 31 2025 {March 31 2024
Opening balance 316 3.59
Provision created / (Reversal) (0.44}
Closing halance 3.15 3.15

d) The net movement in provision for obsoletef siow moving stack during the previous year has been
considered under purchases




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

AS B‘ As at
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
1.8 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES “iRgrCrores 3} Rs. Crores
{Unsecured)
Considered good
Related parties (Refer Nole 3.7) 044
Others 22484
Considered Doubtful 341
26.69
Less: Loss allowance 341
23.28
Agelng for trada receivabie Rs, Crores
Gutstanding for foflowing periods from due date of payrment
Year ended March 31, 2025 Not dua loss than 6 8 months-t 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Totat
months year years
(i) Undispuied Trade receivables

- Relaled Parlies 0.60 - - - - 0.60

- congidered good - 11.87 0.49 0,07 9,07 0.24 12,74

- which have significant Increase in credi risk - - - - - - -

- credit impaired - - - - 0.46 295 3.41
{ii) Disputed Trads Receivables

- considered good - - - - - - -

- which have significant increase in credit rigk - - - - - - -

- eredit Impaired - - - - - - -
Gross Receivables - 12.47 (.49 o407 .53 3.18 16.75
Less: Loss allowance 3.41
Total 13.34

Oulstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Year ended March 31, 2024 Not due Le::;rl:;l:: & 6 m;er::m 1 1-2 years 2-3 years MO;‘::::" 3 Total
(i} Undispuled Trade receivables

- Related Parties 0.44 0.44

- censidared good - 21,80 Q.15 0.38 0.23 0,28 22.84

- which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - .

- cradit impairad . - - 0.24 0.84 233 344
(it Disputed Trade Recevables

- consldered good - - - - - - -

- which have slgnificant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -

- eredit impaired - - - - - - -
Gross Recelvables - 22.24 0.15 0,62 1.07 261 26,69
Less: Loss allewance 34
Total 23,28
Noles :

1. Movement in loss allowance is a3 Tollows:
Parllculars March 2025 March 2024
Opening 3.41 3.52
Add: Additions - {0.08)
Less: Ulilisations / Reversals - {0.03)
Closing 341 341

2. Due form related parties Conslderd Good

3. For details of assels given as security against borrawings - Refer Notes 3.89 and 3.10

fahisnls,




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

As at

‘| March 31, 2024

1.09A A. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Rs. Crores
iy Balance with hanks:
In current accounts 0.43
fi) Cash and stamps on hand 0.02
0.45
1,008 ©. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN (A} ABOVE
5.03

Deposits with original matusity of more than 3 months but less than 12 menths

5.03




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

As at
| March 31, 2024
1,10 CURRENT - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Rs. Grores
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
a) Interest acerued :
- Others 0.11
b) Employee advances 0,10
c) Others {incluides expenses recoverable, elfc.)
Considered good
Related parties -
Others -
Considered doubiful 0.31
0.31
Less:Aillowance for doubtful amount (0.31)
0.21
4,48 CURRENT - OTHER FINANGCIAL ASSETS (continued)
Notes:
1. These are carried at amortised cost.
2. Movement in Allowance for doubtful receivabie (Revenue grants receivable) is as follows:
Particulars March 2025 March 2024
Qpening Balance - -
Add: Additions - -
Less: Utilisations / Reversals - -
Closing Balance - -
1, Movement in Allowance for doubtful receivable {others) is as follows:
Particulars March 2025 March 2024
Opening Balance 0.31 0.31
Add: Additions - -
Add: Reclassification
Less: Utilisations / Reversais - -
Closing Balance 0.31 0.31

o ‘(_’
SN
(o -~
\\"’f-’f\?d At ‘:)




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited
tements

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial sta

T hsat | s at
“rare March 31,
141 CURRENT CONTRACT ASSETS : ! 5.6 1 Rs. Crores
Unbilled revenue 0.95
0.95




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

| statements

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financia

Mér'ch'131',:'.2025- March 31, 2024
“Rs.croresi] _ Rs. Crores

412 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
{Unsecured, considerad good unless otherwise stated)

a) Balances with Govarnment Authorities - Goads and Services Tax, Cusloms Duty, Port Trust
10.62

Charges, Centra Exeise Duty etc.
0.14

W

p) Prepaid Expenses
10.76




Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

As at
March 31, 2024
1.43 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL Rs, Crores
Authorised
40,00,000 (March 2024: 40,00,000) Equity shares of Re.1 00 each 40.00
40,00
Issued
2)29,69,999 (March 2024: 29,60,898) Equily shares of Re.100 each 28.70
2070
Subscribed and fully paid up
29,659,908 (March 2024: 29,69,399} Equity shares of Re.100 each 28,70
29.70
. 29.70
 promolers as at March 31,2025 i Heii % Change during’
Name of the:Promotar.:=o. R e = Noyof-Shares] %of tolal Shares| “theyear:
1{Ashck leyland 27,66,428 93.15% -
21Gulf oit 203,571 £.85% -
Total 29,69,99% 180% -
TR 7o 8hares held by promaters ds:af March 31,2024 o f| % Change during
€. No [Name of the:Promote SRR s SR T No.of Shares| :%of total shares] o theyear i:i
1l Ashok Leyland Lid 27,66,428 93.15% -
21 Gulf ot lubricants India Ld 2,03,571 6,.85% -
Total 28,69,999 100% -

5000 Equity shares (2024 -5000) of Rs.100 each are jointly hald by Ashok Leyland Limited with 7 individuals are included in the number of shares

Deiails to be given separately for each class of shares

held and % disclosed above.

1. Reconciliation of number of equity shares subsaribed March 2025 March 2024

Batance as al the baginning of the year 29,69,99,800 29,69,89,800
Add: ssued during lhe year - -

Balance as at end of the year 29,69,98,900 29,69,92,900

2. Shares issued In preceding 5 years

Aggregate number and class of equily shares alloted for consideration olher than cash, bonus shares etc., in the five years immediately greceding the balance sheet date as on

March 31, 2025 and aggregate number of Shares bought back is NIL (2024: NiE)

3. Rights, preferences and restrictions in respact of equity shares issued by the Company
The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par vatue of Rs 10 each,

Tha Equity share holders are entitled 1o recelve dividend as and when declared, right to vote in proporiien of holding elc., and their rights, oreferences and resirictions are govemned

by or in terms of their issue and provisions of Companies' Act, 2013.
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As al
7 March 31, 2024

114 OTHER EQUITY Note Rs. Crores

Retaired Earnings (24.74)

[24.74)
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Notes annexed

to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

1.45 NON-CURRENT FINANGIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS ‘

a) Secured borrowings

Term loan from hanks

b} Unsecured horrowings

-

Notes:

1 These are carried al amoriised cost.

2 Refer Note 3.9 for secttity and terms of the borrowing

3 The Company has applied the funds raised through lerm loans for the purposes far which thay were obtained

4 The Company is not deciared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or gavernment or any gavern

5| March 31, 2024

As at

Rs. Crores

|

ment authority.
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

T Asat | Asat
‘March'31,2038 | March 31, 2024
1.16 NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS TTRs.Crores-.] Rs.Crores
a) Provision for employee benefits
Cempensated absences (.33
b) Provision for cther contingancies
i, Others (including litigation matters) .52
0.85

Notes:

2. Movemaent in Provision for others (including litigation matiers) is as follows :

Particulars March 2025 March 2024
Opening 0.52 0.52
Add: Additions - -
tess: Transfer / Reversal - -
Closing 0.52 0.52
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Noies annexed to and farming part of the standalone financial statements

- - ]

B L. ] JEB Asal
7 Vraarch 33, 2025 § Masch 31, 2024
1,47 GURRENT FINANCIAL LEABILETIES - BORROWINGS - Re. Grores Rs, Grores

Secured borrowings

Loans from Banks

{Inckides WCDL cash credit, packing credit, ato)
Bil's discounted

Unsecured borowings
Short lerm Toans from banks
Biks discounted

Cureent maturities of long-term debts
[ &

Notes!

1. these are camied at amorlised cost.

2. Refar Mote 3.10 for security and lerms of the borrowings.

147  Het dent reconclilation:

i Amab i As at
$iarch 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Rs, Groses

Cash and cash equivalens 045
Liquid fnvestments

Curent horrowings
Non-cusrent borrowings
Oerivative Assel f (Liabifty)
Lease Lizhility

Net debt

—

Hel dabt 25 at March 31, 2023 X k (16.00) (15.93)

Cash flows {eet] {0.40} 1.00 - {1.50) - .87 . {6.03)
Foreign exchange adjustments {Realised / tnreaboed) - - - - - .

Profit on sale of Fguid investments (net) - - . . . ~
- {1.69) - (0.47) £4.76)

Interest expense - -
Interest pakd - - - 1.59 - - 149
Clher non-cash movements

- Fair value adjustments - - - - - - -

- Addtion [ Deletion {Net) relating to lease fabibty - - - - - - -
Net debt as at March 31, 2024 0.45 503 - (19.58) - {2.11) (16,13}
Cash flows nat} 1.34 047 {10.00} {6.04) - {6.32) {14.55}
Forelgn exchange adjustments (Realised / Unrealised) - - -
Profit on sale of Fguld investments (nef) - - - -
Interast expense - - 031 (097) - {0.20} {4.48)
Interest paid - - 031 097 - i.28

Other non-cash movements
- Fair value adjustments - - - -
- Swap relaled adjustments - - - -
- Addition { Dalelion (Nel) refating ta iease fiabiity - - - . - . .

Tlet debil as at March 31, 2625 1.7 5.50 16,00 25.54 - 2.63 30.88

.
L
3
G x
¥
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standaione financial statements

As at
March 31,
- )25 2024
1.48 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES “Rs.Crores | Rs, Crores
a) Total autstanding dues of micro anterprises and smali enterprises -
b) Total autstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smail enterprises 41,52
41.52
Trade Payables ageing schedule Rs, Crores
As at March 31, 2025
Outstanding for following pericds from due date of payment
Un-biled
i (includes Less ;
Particutars scerued Not due]| than1 1-2 2-3 More than 3 Total
years | years years
axpenses [ year
liabilities)
(i) Undisputed dues - Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - - - -
(i) Undisputed dues - Others - - 17,22 - - - 17.22
(lii) Disputed dues — Micro and Smalt Enterprises - - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -
| Total - - 17.22 - - - 17.22
As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Un-hilled
. includes Less
rt ( .
Particulars accrued Not due| than1 1-2 2-3 Mare than 3 Total
years | years years
axpenses [ yeat
Habilities)
(i) Undisputed dues - ficre and Small Enlerprises - - - - - - -
(il) Undisputed dues - Others - - 41.52 - - - 41,52
(iti) Disputed dues — Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - - - -
(i) Disputed dues - Qthers - - - - - - -
Total - - 41.52 - - - 41.52

dilsy \E
AR CER
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

3 As at
March 31, 2024

149 CURRENT - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES Rs. Crores
a) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.04
) Employee benefits 0.53
¢} Others 0.46

1.03
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

e As at
1 March 31, 2024
1.286 CURRENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES Rs. Crores
Advance from customers 2.00
2.00
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Notes annexed to and for

ming part of the standalone financial statements

SneiAsTat i As at
March:31,2025.] March 31, 2024
1.21 CURRENT PROVISIONS 7 Ra;Crores i Rs. Crores -
a) Pravision for employee benefits
i. Compensated absences 0.07
ii. Gratuity (Refer Note 3.2.2) 0.54
b) Others -
0.61
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

March 312025 | March 31, 2024

1.22 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES “7Rs.Crores: | Rs.Crores
Statutory liabilities 0.64
0.64
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial

Year ended
24 REVENUE.FROM OPERATIONS March 34, 2024
Rs. Crores
a) Sale of products
- Gommercial vehicles
Manufactured -
Traded 265.44
- Spare parts and others 21.80
(A) 291,24
b} Sale of services {B) 4.54
¢) Other operating revenues
- Scrap sales 0.53
- Others -Incentives 2.30
{C) 2.83
(A+B+C) 298.61
Less: Rebates and discounts _ 33.49
23033, 285.12
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

Year ended March: Year ended
2.2 OTHER INCOME ' 1 march 31, 2024
Rs, Crores
a) Interest income from financial assets measurad al amortised cost
i. Loans to related parties -
ii. Others 0.33
(FD&IT refund)
0.33
b) Other non-operating income
i, Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment {net} -
ii. Others 0.07
(including Unclaimed halances written hack)
0.07
0.40
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

Year ended

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK- d.
025 | March 31,2024

3 IN-TRADE

Rs. Crores
Changes in inventories
- Finished goods and stock-in-trade {10.30}
Net change {10.30)
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

Year.ended March: Year ended
2.4 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE S | March 31, 2024
Rs. Crores
a) Salaries and wages 6.72
b) Contribution to provident and other funds 0.63
c) Staff welfare expenses 0.53
7.88

Less: Expenses capitalised

7.88
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

_;;-EYB?-‘?:F““‘*“;_:. Year ended
March 31, 2024

2.5 FINANCE COSTS

Rs. Crores

Interest expense 1.69

1.59

0.17

Interest on lease liability
Other Borrowing Costs

1.76
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

2,6 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Rs, Crores
A) Property, plant and equipment
(i} Buildings 0.21
(i) Plant and equipment 0.20
(iif) Furniture and fittings 0.13
{iv) Vehicles including eleclric vehicies 0.17
{v) Office equipment 0.01
0.72
b) Depreciation of Right-of-use asset 042
1.14

Note:
Also Refer Notes 1.1, 1.1A
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" Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

2,7 OTHER EXPENSES

Yoar anded March
Sooag0%8

Year ended
March 31, 2024

“Re.Crores Rs. Crores
{a) Consumption of stores and teols 0.02
(b} Power and fuel 0.24
{c} Rent 0.08
{(Refer Note 3.4)
{d) Repairs and maintenance 0.45
{e) Insurance 0.21
(f) Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income 0.70
{q) Culside service charges 0.71
(h) Servica Expensas (Diesel for Service Van 0.07
{i) Packing and forwarding charges 0.02
{i} Administration expenses - net 0.25
(Includes advertisement,soft ware,printing &Stationery, legal expenditure charges,
etc} ’
{k) Bank Charges 0.04
{ly Cansultancy Charges 1.28
(m) Directars Siiting fees 0.03
{n) Selling and Distribution 0.94
{oYAudit Fees 0.05
{p) Security Charges&Gontract Labour Charges 0.59
{u) ¥mpairment loss allowance [ write off on trade receivable {net) (0.08)
{r) impairment loss allowance J write off on other receivable (net) (0.13)
{s) Miscetlaneous including operational expenses 1.12
{includes hire charges, travel expenditure elc.}
6.60
Less: Expenses capitalised -
6.60
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements
3.1 Income taxes relating to continuing operations
“-Yearended ] Year ended
3.4.1 Income lax recognised in profit or loss “March 34-2025] March 31, 2024
‘ ‘Crore Rs. Crores
Current tax
In respect of the current year .
In respecl of prior years -
(A} "
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year ) {0.34)
Adjustments to deferred lax allrioutable o changes in tax rates and laws -
{B} {0.34
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (A + B} {0.34)]
3.1.2 Income tax expense far the year reconciled to the accounting profit:
Year ended |
March 31, 2024
Rs. Crores
Profit!{loss} before tax (1.28)
incame 1ax rate 33.38%
Income tax expense -
Effect of income that is exempt from taxation -
Effect of income that is taxed at lower rate -
Eifects of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profi
ncome lax expense recognised in profit or loss -
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statemenis

3.4.3 Analysis of deferred tax assets ) llabilities:
Rs. Crores

March 34, 2025 7 Openingiii ] Fiasd In | Recognised in: | Recognised I | Unused tax

Deferred tax (liabitities)lassets in rolation to:
Property, Plant & Equipment and intangible assets
Olhar tamporary differences

Unused tax losses f unabsorbed depracialion

L

March 31, 2024 Cpenlng Racognised in Recognised in Recognised in Unused tax Dyl C[oslngﬂ
balance profit or [oss other other equity crediis - unwinding balance
camprehensive {utifised) jduetotax rale
inconme change

Defarred tax (abilities}assets in refatiton to:
Property, Plant & Eguipment ard intangible assels {0.50) G142 - - - - (0.38)
Other temporary differences - - - - - - -
Unused tax losses { unabsorbed depreciation 1.12 Q.22 - - - - %ﬂ

0.62 6.34 - - - il 0.96

Deferred tax assels and labiliies are recognised for the fulure tax consequences of lemporary differences between lhe carrying values of assels and liabifies and their
respective tax bases, unused tax credits, Deferred tax assets arg recogrised lo the extent that it is prebable that fulure taxable income wilt be available againgl which Lhe
deduciible temporary differences, unused tax fasses and unused 1ax credits could be ulilised,
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the standalone financial statements

Unrecognised deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and

314 unused fax credits
As at
March 31, 2024
Rs. Crores
- Unabsorbed depreciation 3.39
- Unused tax losses (capital) 17.73
21.12

Nofes:
1 These will expire in various years upto 2031-32.
2 The above are gross amounis on which appropriate tax rates would apply,
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3.2
3.2

3.24

3.2,2

Employee beneflt plans {Including Retirement benefit plans)
Retirement benefit plans

Defined contribufion plans

Paymenis to defined contribution plans i.e., Company's contribution to superannuatien fund, employee state Insurance
and other funds are determined under the refevant schemes and / or statute and charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period of incurrence when the services are rendered by the employees.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of Rs. .71 crores (2023-24: Rs. .B3 crores) represents contribution paid/
payabla to these schemes by the Company at rates specified in the schemes.

Compensated absence and Defined benefit plans

The Company has an obligation towards gratuily as per payment of gratuity act, 1972, a defined benefit plan covering
ellgible employees. The plan provides for a Jump-sum payment fo vested employees at the time of retirement, separation,
death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable far each
completed year of service. Vesling occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for tha liability
for gratuity benefits payable in the fulure based on an acluarial valuation. The Company makes annual contributions
through trusts 1o a funded gratuily scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Eligible employees of the Company are entifled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined benefit plan, in
which bath employees and the Company make monihly centributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’
salary. Tha contributions are made to the provident fund and pension fund set up as irrevocable trusts by the Campany.
The interest rates deciared and credited by trusts to the members have been higher than / equal o the statutory rate of
inferest declarad by the Central Govarnment. :

Gompany's liability fowards gratulty {funded), provident fund, other retirement benefits and compensated absences are
actuarially determined at the end of each reporting period using the projected unit credit method as applicable.

These plans typically expase the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rale risk, longevity risk and
salary risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caloulated using a discount
rale delermined by reference to the market yields on government honds
denominated in ndian Rupees. If the actual return on plan asset is below this rate, it
will create a pian deficit.

Interest rate risk A decrease in the bond interest rale will increase the plan liability. However, this will
] be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's debt invesiments.
Longevity risk The present vaiue of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the

best estimate of the mortality of plan parlicipants both during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan patticipants will increase
the plan's liability. )

Salary risk The present vaiue of the defined benefit pian liabitity Is calculated by reference to the
. future salaries of plan paricipants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
pariicipants will increase the plan’s liability,
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3.7 Employae henefit plans (Including Refirement benefit plans) {continued)

3.2.3 The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

arnAs At As at

March 34,2025 | March 31, 2024
Gratuily RN S
Discounl rate 7.18%
Expected rale of salacy increase 5.00%
Average past service 4.58
Average Longevity at retirement age - future service 22,38
Alftrition rate 16.00%
Compensated absences
Discoust rale 7.19%
Expected rate of salary increase 5.00%
Atteition rale 15.00%

The estimates of fulure salary increases, censidered in aciuarial valualion, takes into account inflation, sentorily, promotion and ciher
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market,

Amounts recognised in tofal comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit plans and compensated absence are
3.2.4 as follows:

: ndid: ] Yearanded
March 3120251 March 31, 2024
‘Re.Croras; Rs. Crores
Gratuify
Curreni service cost 0.12
Net inlerest Expenses / (income} 0.03
Components of defined benefit costs reccgnised in profit or loss 0,15
Remeaswement on the net defined benefil liability comprising:
Aciuarial {gain)floss arising from changes in financiai assumplions 0.1
Acluzrial (gein)loss arising from experience adjusiments 0.03
Actuarial (gainifloss on plan assels 0.01
Components of defined benefit costs recagnised in other comprehensive Income 0.05
\T»otal 0.20

The current semrvice cost and tie nat interest expense for the year are included in *Contribution to provident and other funds” and
"Sataries and wages” under employse benefits expense in profit or loss {Refer Note 2.4),

The remeasuremeant of the net defined benait liability Is inciudad in other comprehensive income,

1.2.5 The amount included In the balance sheet arising from the Company's obligation In respect of its defined benefit plans and
compensated absence is as follows:

; As at

rch 31, i March 31, 2024
Gratuity “rHs, Grores: - Rs. Crores
Present value of defined benefil obligation Q.77
Fair value of plan assets 0.24
Net liahility arising from defined benefit obligation {fundad) 8.53
Compensated absences and other defined benefit plans
Prasent value of compensated sbsences and other defined benefit obligation 0.40
Fair value of plan assels
Net liability arising from Compensated absences and defined benefit obligation {unfunded} 0.40

Graluity is refiected In olher current asset in case of Net asset and reflected in “Accrued graluity” under other current lzbiliies in case
of Net |iabllity and campensated absences is refiected In "Pravision for employee benefits® under provisions. |Refer Notes 1.21).
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3.2 Employee benefit plans {Iincluding Relirement bensfit plans) {continued)
3.2.6 Movements in the present value of the defined benefit ohligation and Compensated absences wera as follows:

T'¥earended -] Year ended

March 31,:2025 | March 31, 2024

“Rs.Crores: | Rs. Grares
Gratuity :
QOpening definad benefit obiigation 0.64
Current service cost 042
Intarest cost 0,04
Actuarial (gain)ioss arising from changas in financial assunplions 0.01
Acluarial (aain)floss arising from experience adjustments 0.03
Beneafits paid {0.07}
Transfer InfTransfer Out -
Closing defined benefit abligation 0.77
Compensated absences and other defined beneflt plans
Opening dafined benefit obligation .33
Gurrent service cost 007
Interest cost -
Actuarial (gain)ioss arising from changes In financiat assumptions -
Acluzrial (gain)foss arising from experience adjustments -
Benefits paid -
Transfer InfTransfer Out -
Closing Compansated absences and defined banelit obligation .40

3.2,7 Movements In the fair value of the plan assets were as follows:

#1 Year ended _]
51 March 31, 2024

March 31,20

iCrores Rs, Crores
Grafulty ;
Opening fair value of plan assels 0.30
Interest on plan assels Q.02
Remeasurements due 1o Aclual retumn on plan assets less inferest on plan assets -
Return on plan asssts {excluding amaunts included in netinterest expense)} -
Contributions "
Benefits pald {0.08)
Transfer InfTransfer Qut -
0.24

Closing falr value of plan assets

The Company funds the cost of the gratuity expected o be earned an a yearly basis 1o SB! Lile Insurance Corparation of India, which
manages the plan assets. :

The actual relum on plan assels was Rs. .02 grores (2023-2024: Rs..02 crores).

3.2.8 Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary
increase. The sensiivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possitile changes of the respective
assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period.

As at
March 31,2025 { March 31, 2024
ReGroresi:c]  Rs. Crores
Gratuity
If the disceunt rate is 50 basis poinis higher/lower, the defined benefi abligation would:
decrease by 0.05
increase by 0.05
if the expecled satary increases/decreases by 50 basls peints, the defined benefit abiigation
would:
increase by 0.05
decrease by 0.05
Compensated absences )
¥ the discount rate Is 50 basis points highes/lower, the defined benefil abligation would:
decrease by 0.02
increase by 0.03
If the expected salary Increases/decreases by 50 basis points, the dafined benefit cbligation
would:
increass by ety L 0.02
decrease by CELTU T 0.08 002

The sensilivity analysis presented above may not be representative af the actual change in the chiigation, since the above analysis
are based on change in an assumption while holding olher assumptions constant, In practice, it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions wouid occur in isolation ef one another as some of (ke assumptions may be correlated.

Furihermare, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present vaiue of the obligation has been calculated using the projected
 unit eredil method at the end of each reporling period, which is the same as that applied in catculating the fiability recognised in the
balance sheet,

There was na change in the methods and assumptions usedin preparing the sensitivily analysis from previous year.
3. [he Company expects lo make a cantribution of Rs. 0,66 crores {March 2024: Rs.0 crores) to the defined benefit plans (graluity -

\flnded) during the next financial year.

*The average duration of the benefit obligation {gratuity) is 6.4 years (March 2024: 6.9 years).
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3.3 Earnings per share “Yearended | Year endad
| March 31, 2024
Rs.
Basic earnings per share (3.17)
Diluted eamings per share (3.17)
Face value per share 100.00
3.3.1 Basic earnings per share
The earnings and weighted average number of equily shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows:
Yearanded ] VYearended
‘March 34;2025: | March 31, 2024
5 Crores ] Rs. Crores
Profit for the year aftibutable to equity shareholders (0.94)
Adiustments -
Earnings used in the calculation of baslc eamings per share {0.24)
#| Yearended
March 31, 2024
) Nos.
Weighted average number of equily shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 29,60 988

3.3.2 Diluted earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows:

=l Year ended
March 31, 2024
Rs. Crores
Prefit for the year atiributable to equity shargholders
(0.94)
Adjustments ©
Employee stock option expense (net of tax) u -
Earnings used in the calculation of difuled earnings per share 2 (4.00) {0.94)

The weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share raconciles to the welightad average number

af equity shares used in the calculation of basic eamings per share as follows:

i Yearendedii| Yearended
““March:31;2025:| March 31, 2024
No i Nos.
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 25,69,988
Adjustments : '
Ditutive effect - Numbear of shares relating to employee stock aptions -
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted eamnings per share 29,69,999

=0 font
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3.4 Lease arrangamenis
Company has applied foliowing praclical expedients far the purpose of lease on intial recagailion :

1} Single discount rate has been applied for leases with same ¢haracteristics,
2} Non - lease component which are difficult to be separated from the feass components are laken as the par of lease calculation.
3) Short tarm leases i.e. leases having lease term of 12 months or less had bean ignored for tha purpese of caloulation of righl-of-use assel.

Expenses for the year ended March 31, 2025 includes ieasa expense classified as Short term lease expenses aggregaling to Rs.0.12 crores (March 31, 2024: Rs.0.08
crores) and vasdable lease payments aggregating to Rs. NIL crores (March 31, 2624: Rs. NIL crores) which are not required ta be recognised ag part of the practical
expedient under Ind AS 116 'Leases’ mentioned apove.
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3.5

3.51

3.5.2

Financial Instrumeants
Capital management

The Company manages its capital {o ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern white maximising the relumn to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity bafance.

The Company determines the ameunt of capital required on the basis of annual master planning and budgeting and corporate plan for
working capital, capital outiay and long-term product and strategic involvements. The funding requirements are met through equity, internal
accruals and a combinalion of both fong-term and short-term barrowings.

The Company menitors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equily and maturity profile of the overail deb portfolio of the
Company.

‘March 31;2025: March 31, 2024

5. Crores Rs. Crores
Debt {long-term and short-ter borrewings and lease liabilites net off Cash and cash squivalents)* 21.16
Total Equity 4.96
4.28

Deht equity ratio

*The total of long-term and short-term borrowings, Including lease liabilities, amounts Lo ¥18.67 crores. Against this, cash and cash equivalents stand af
¥1.79 crores, resulling in a net Debt positian of T16.88 crores ’

Financial risk management

In course of lts business, the Company is expased lo certain financial risks that could have significant influence on the Company's business
and operational / financial performance. These include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credif risk

and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directers reviews and approves risk management framework and polictes for managing these risks and moniters suitable
mitigating actions laken by the management to minlmise potentiat adverse effects and achieve greater predictability to earnings.

tn fine vdlh the overall risk management framework and policies, the freasury function pravides services to the business, monitors and
manages thzough an analysis of the exposures by degree and magnilude of risks.

The Company Uses derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures in accordance vith the Company's policies as approved by the
board of direclors,

{A)} Market risk

Markel risk represent changes in market prices, liquidity and other factors that could have an adverse effect an reatisable fair values or
future cash flows lo the Company, The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks af changes in foreign currency exchange
rales and interest rates as future speciiic market changes cannol be normally predicted with reasenable accuracy.
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3.5 Financlal Instruments continued...

{1} intersst rate risk management:

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk pertaining to fimds borrowed at boih fixed and fioating interest rates. The risk is
managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings. Hedging activities are
evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies.
Further, In appropriate cases, the Company also effeclts changes in the borrowing arrangements to convert floating interast rates

to fixed interest rates vice versa using interest rate swap contracts.
The exposure of company's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
“ERe-Croresiii| Rs. Crores
19.50

18.50

Variable rate Borrowings
Fixed rate Borrowings *

* Includes variable rate horrowings amaunting to Rs. NIL crores {March 31, 2024: Rs. NIL crores subsequently converted to fixed
rate borrowings through swap contracts

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivily analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period. For
floating rate liabiiities, the analysis is prepared assuming that the amount of the liability as at the end of the reporting period was
sutstanding for the whale year. A 25 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents Management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher/ lower, ihe Company’s profit / loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 would
decrease / increase by Rs.0.04 crores (March 31, 2024 decrease / increase by Rs,0.04 crores). This is mainly attributable to the
Company's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.
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3.5

Financial Instruments continued...

{2} Equity prige risk:

Equity price risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments in quoled equity securities. The fair value of some of the
Company's invesiments exposes the Company to equity price risks. In general, these securities are nat heid for frading purposes.

{B) Credit risk

Credit risk refers o the risk thal a counterparty will default on its contraclual abligations resuiling in financial loss to the Company. The
Company's exposure and the credit ratings of ils counlerpariies are continuously monitored, and the aggregate vatus of {ransactions
concluded is spread amoengst approved counterparies.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from trade receivables, bank balances, inler-company loans, financial guarantees and other financial
assets,

Credit risk on Trade receivables:

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customars, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing credit
avaluation is performed on the finencial condition of accounts receivable and, where appropriate, credit guarantee cover is taken. The
Company operates predeminantly on cash and carry basis excepting sale to State Transport Undertaking (STU), Government project
customers based on tender tarms and certain export / domestle customers which are an credit basis, The average credit period is in the range
of 7 days to 80 days. However, in select cases, credit Is extended which is backed by Security deposit! Bank guarantee/ Letter of credit and
ather forms. The Company creates specific provisions for disputes and the expected credit insses for such recelvables are insignificant.

The Company makes a loss allowance using simplified approach for expected credit loss (ECL} and on a case lo case basls, ECL are the
weighted average of credit losses with the expected risk of default occurring as the weights {historically not significant). ECL is difference
batween all contraclual cash fiows thal are due lo the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company
expects lo receive. The ageing on trade recelvable is given in note 1.10.

The credit risk on liguid funds and derivative financial instruments s limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings, The
gredit risk on intercompany loans, financial guarantees and other financial assets are evaluated to be immaterial.
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3.5

Financial Instruments continued...
{C) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements, The
Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital limits from various banks. Furthermore, the
Company has access to funds from debt markets through commercial paper programs, non-convertible debentures,
and othaer debt instruments. The Company invests Its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and mutual funds, which
carry minimal mark to market risks,

The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facitiies at the end of the reporting period:

March:31; 2025 March 31, 2024
t“Rs:Croresi | Rs. Crores
Floating rate
From Banks
- Secured 21.00
Total 2.96 21.00

Further to the above, the Company has an option to Issue commercial paper for an amount of Rs. Nil crores (March
31, 2024 Rs.Nil crores). The Company also constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital
markets with a view fo maintain financial flexibility.

The table helow summarises the maturlty profile remaining contractual maturity period at the balance sheet date for
its non-derivative financial fiabilities based on the undiscounted cash flows.

) Rs, Crores
Due it 15t year | Duein 2nd to Due after 5th Total
March 31, 2025 5th year yaar
Trade payables 17.22 - - 17.22
Other financiai liabilities 1.60 - - 1.60
Borrowings 6.04 10.00 - 16.04
|.ease liabilities 0.71 1.92 - 2.63
2557 11.92 - 37.49
March 31, 2024
Trade payables 41.52 - - 41,52
Other financial abilities 1.57 - - 1.57
Borrowings 19.50 - - 19.50
Lease liabilities 0.59 : 1.96 - 2.55
63,18 1.96 - 65.14

As there is immaterial expected credit loss on the financial guarantees given to group companies, the Company has
not recognised a liability lowards financial guarantee as at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, not included in
the above table..
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3.5 Financial instruments continued...

3.5.3 Categorles of Financial assets and liabilites: Rs, Crores
: : As at
March 31,
2024

Financial assets

Investments (net of impairment} measured at cost 0.02
a. Measured at amortised cosf:

Cash and cash equivalenis 0.45
Other bank balances 5.03
Trade Recelvables {net of allowance) 23,28
Loans -
Cthers (net of allowance) 0.30
b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) / other

comprehensive income (GCH):

Investments -
Derivatives designated in hedge accounting relationships -
Darivative instruments not designated in hedge relationships -
Financial liabilities

a. Measured at amortised cost:

Borrowings 18.50
Trade Payables 41.52
QOther financial liabilifies 1.03
|Lease liabilities 2.1

b. Mandatoriiy measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) / othar
comprehensive income (OCH:

[Derivatives designated in hedge accounting relationships BT -

The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with Banks and Financial
Institutions are in agreement with the books of account.

The Company is required to comply with certain covenants under the facility agreements executed for its
borrowings, which were either complied or consent obtained for continuing the facility.

3.5.4 Fair value measurements:

(A) Financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair values but in respect of which fair
values are as follows:

The carrying amounts of current financial assets and liabilites are considered to be the same as their fair
values, due to their short-term nature. Difference between fair value of non-current financial instcuments
carried at amortised cost and their carrying value is not considered to be material to the financials
statements. The fair values for loans, security deposils are calculated based on cash flows discounted
using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of
- unabservable inputs including counterparty credit risk. The fair values of non-current borrowings are based

'” *’f .on. discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair

-

v
Ee
o [

Faen

ik
o ULl
.

: vsl\ue hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk. For financial assets and
Miabillties that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal o the fair values.
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3.6 Revenue from contracts with custorners:

3.6.1 Disaggregated revenue information

‘March. 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars i%Ra:Crores | Rs.Crores
Type of goods and service
a) Sale of products
- Commercial vehicles 260,44
- 8pare parts and others 21.80
291.24
b) Sale of services
- Freight and related services
- Others 4.54
4.54
¢) Other operating revenues ]
- Scrap sales 0.53
- Others 2.30
2.83
Less: Rebates and discounts 33.48
Total revenue from contracts with customears 265,12
India 265,12
Outside India
Total revenue from contracts with customers 265.12
Timing of revenue recognition March 31, 2024
At a pointin |Over a petied of
Particulars time time
- Sale of products and other operating revenue 288.90 5,17
- Sale of Services - Freight and related services - -
- Sale of Services - Annual Maintenance Contracts, warranty 542 162
services and others : '
Less: Rebates and discounts 33.49 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 258,33 6.79
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3.6 Revenue from contracts with customers:
3.6.2 Contract balances

“March'31;2025| March 31, 2024
Particulars ‘Crores:: Rs. Crores
Trade receivablas {Refar Notes1.08) 2328
Contract assels (Refer Note 1.11) 0.95
Confract fiabiiities {Refer Notes 1.20) 2.00

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of "Cash and Carry" for Vehicles and the credit periad for
services rendered are on the basis of credit worthiness of the customers. (Refer Credit risk Note 3.5.(B)).

Contraci assets are unbillsd revenue earned from Annual Maintenance Contracts and other services which are recognised upon
completion of service. Upon billing as per the terms of the contract, the amounis recognised as contract assels are reclassified to
trade receivables. There is no significant change in contract assets between the reporting periods.

Contract liabilities includes advance received from customers and income received in advance arising due to aliocation of
transaction price towards freight and insurance services on shipments not yet delivered to customer and unexpired service
warranties. The decrease in contract liabifiies is due fo decrease in unexpired service warranties and decrease in

3.6.3 Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

+“March'31:2025] March 31, 2024
7 “’Re:Crores il Rs.Crores
Revenue recognised from contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 2.00° 4,35
Revenue recognised from performance obligations salisfied in previous years ; 0.34
3.6.4 Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and foss with the contracted price
Particulars . . “‘Mareh:31,2025F March 31, 2024
"Ra.Crores - | Rs. Crores
Contracted price 26218 298.81
Adjustments
Rebhates and discounts (33.49)
Revenue from contract with customers 265,12
3.6.5 Unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance obligation

The transaction price allocated fo the remaining performance abligations (unsatisfied or pariially unsatistied) are as follows:

“March 31,:2025{ March 31, 2024
iRs; Grores.s Rs. Crores
: 0.95

Within one year
More than one year

S04 0.95

The remaining performance obligations expected 1o be recognised in more than one year relate o the extended warranty and
other abligation which is expected to be recognised over a period of 13 months to 18 months.The Company appiles practical
expedient of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about remaining performance abligations that have original expected
duration of less than a year.
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3.7 Helated party disclosure
&) List of parties where control exists

Holding company
Ashok Leyland Limited

Subsldiaries
b} Other Related parties

Feltow Subsidlaries of Holding company
Rinduja Leyland Finance Limited

Hinduja Housing Finance Limited

Oplare PLC

Optare UK Limited

Switch Mobility Limited formerly known as Oplare Group Limiled )
Jamesstar Invesiments Limited

Optare Heldings Limited

Optare (Leads) Limited

East Lancashire Bus Builders Limited
Optare Austraia PTY LTD

Ashok Leyland {UAE} LLC

LLGC Ashek Leyland Russia

Ashok Leyand West Africa

Ashok Leyland (Nigeria} Limiled

Ashok Leyland (Chile) S.A,

Global TVS Bus Hody Builders Limited

HLF Services Limited

Ashisy Aviation Limited

Vishwa Buses and Coaches

Albonair {india) Private Limited

Albonair GmbH, Gemany

Albanair {Taicang) Automotive Technolegy Co. Limited, China
Hinduja Tech Limited

Hinduja Tech Inc., USA

Hinduja Tach [nc. BmbH

Gulf Oil Lubricants India Ltd.

Ashok Leyiand Foundalien

Gro Digital Platforms Limited

QORM Global Mobility Pvt. Lid.

Assaoclates
Ashok Leyland Oefense Systems Limited

Jolnt Ventures
Ashok Leyland John Desre Construction Equipment Company Privale Limited [Along with Guif Ashley Motor Limiled} {under
figuidation)

Entittes where contral exist
NA

Key management personnel

Mr. Sanjeev Kumar-Chairman

Nr. K M Balaji-Director

Mr.Mohit Geolcha-Director

Mr.\Vikas Jha-Director

Mr.Nalin Malik, Chief Operating Officer
Mr.N, Srinath - Chief Financial Officer

M.V Ramachandran - Company Secretary
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ming part of the Standalone Financial Stalements

3.7 Refated party gisclosure continu

ed...

<} Related Party Transactions - symmary

Rs. Crores

| Fallow Subsidlarias of,
“~Holdlng Gompany

Transactions during the year
anded Mareh 31

2024

2024

Y

Furchase of raw malerials,
components and lraded goods
{net of GST)

Salas and services {nat of GST)
Other operaling Incoma

Other expenditure incured f
{recovered) (net}

5 |Advance / current accounts - net
increase ! {decresse}

Interast and other Income
Purchase of assals

Sala of asset

Dividend payments

Dividerd Incama
Remuneratian to key
management personnal

11 [Commission and silting fees lo
kay management personnal *
12 |Financlal guarantees issued
13 |Financlal guarantees released
14 |Investments in shares of

16 |Loans/ Advance converied io
investment in equity instrumenls
16 |Disposal of investments

17 [Share application money given
15 jIntercomporate deposits given
16 iInter<ormorate deposis repaid
17 iLoan Given

18 jLoan Repaid

19 {Consideratian towards sake of

EN )

SHWwE~N oo

interest thereen

20 [Conversion of recelvable on
slump sale into preference shares
Contribution to employee refated
trusis made during the year
Including foans and Interest
recovered

2

e

Elactric vehlcle business including |70

247.68

6,71
193

1,20

251,54 |

257,52
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3.7 Related party disclosure continued...

d} Related Party balances - summary Rs. Crores

Balances as on March 31

1 |Trade receivables (Refer
1.8)

2 |Loans

3 |Other financial and non-
financial assets

4 |Trade and other payables
5 IShare application money

5 |Financlal guarantees
Total
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3.7 Related party disclosure continued...
e} Significant Related Parfy Transactions
Rs, Crores
Transactions during the year ended March 31 2024

1 Purchase of raw materials, components and traded goods {net of GST)
Ashley Alteams India Limited -
Gulf Oil Lubricants Indla Limited 5.98
Glaobal TVS Bus Body Builders Limited B
Ashok Leyand Limited 24170

2 Sales and services {net of GST}
Ashaok t.eyland Limited 6.71
Ashok Leyland Defence Systems Limited -

3 Other Operating Income
Ashok Leyland Limited 183

4  Other expenditure inctirred | (recovered) {net)
Ashok Leviand Limited 1.20

4 Advance ! current account - net increase / { decrease )

5  Interest and other income

6  Purchase of assetls

6  Purchase of assets

7  Sale of assets

8 DBividend payment

9  Dividend incoeme

10 Financial guarantees released

11  Financial guarantees jssued

12 Financial guarantees released

13 Investment in shares of

11 Liguldation of Investments

12 Disposal of investments

g Share application money given

14  Inter-corporate deposits given

Sale of asset
Leans/ Advance converted to investment in equity instruments

14  Inter-corporate deposits repaid

15 Commission and sitting fees {o key management personnel

16 Contribution to employee related trusts made during the year including loans and Interest racovered

17 Loan given

18 Loanrepaid

19 Consideration towards sale of Electric vehlcté business Including interest thereon

20 Conversion of receivable on slump sale into preference shares

21  Remuneration to key management personnel *
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3.8

Contingent liabilities

March 31, 2024

March 34,2025

Rs. Crores
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (net)
i) Sales tax / VAT f GST # 33.08
i) Service Tax # 0.99
iit) Others -

Future cash outflows in respect of the above are determinable only on receipt of judgement / decisions pending

with various forums / authorities.
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38 Delails of Non-ciment horrowings:
i A% at Mareh 31, 2025 : As at March 31, 2024
Ron-current-{ - Current Matuififas - { " 1 Non-current | Current Maturities Total
‘R, Crores ‘Re.Crores Rs, Crores Rs, Grores Rs. Crores
a. Secured borrowings:

. Term Loans-1

i Non-Convertible Debentures {NCD)

Per qoaner (4 Inslaliments)
26

ot29 Repayable
13

Warking captial Long term demand loan from banks afe secured by way of hypathecation

a} Exclusive charge by way of equilable mortgage on the four immovable propertias localed g1 Jamshedpur, Bokaro, Tinsukla and Tezpur in the name of Lhe company.

b) Subservlent charge on the entire cusrent assels of the company both present and future.
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3.168 Details of cusrrent borrowings

Looohsat e As at
March 31,2025 |- | March 31, 2024
“'Re. Crores i ‘| Rs, Crores
a.|Secured borrowings 7
i |-short term toan-HOFC 19,50
e su charge.by way
ii.| - 8TL - ICICH ofihe ¢ any
iii| Shart term ioan-BOB .
iv| RBL -
19.50
The company as outstanding secured borowings as at March 34, 2025 of Rs.6.04 Crs (March 31, 2024 : Rs.19.50),

Working capital demand lean from banks / Bills discounted are secured by way of hypothecation of the Entire Current assets not
related to Piant and Machinery (Consumable stores and spares) Bills Recelvable, Book Debis and all other movables both
present and future now lying or stored about the factory pramises, godowns, warehouses, yards and any other jocations to the
exient of Rs, 19.20 crores (March 31, 2024: Rs, 45.70 crores)

b, Unsecured borrowings

- As at March 31,

2024

.| - Bills discounted

ii.| - Commercial paper

Rs. Crores
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Year ended| Year ended
3.11 Other Information {including foreign currency transactions) ‘March 31, | March 31,
52025 2024
‘Rs; Crores} Rs. Crores
3.11.1  Auditors' remuneration

Included under selling and administration expenses - net

i) For financial audit 0.03

i} Forother services - limited review, tax audit,certification work, etc. 0.06

i) For reimbursement of expanses
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3.12 Financial Ratios

Ratios ; FY 2024-2025 FY 2023-2024 % of Change
Debt equity ratio # 4,35 334%
Debt service coverage ratio * 0.10 -6B86%
Current ratio 0.86 19%
Trade receivable turnover ratio 10.66 19%
inventory turnover ratio 15.35 10%
Trade payable Wurnover ratio 6,26 13%
Net ¢apital turnover ratio * (100.82) -158%
Return on capital employad (%) * 1.96% -686%!
Retumn on equity (%) * -17.23% 879%
Net profit margin % * -0.35% 371%

‘The Company eams a return on investmeni ranging from 7 % ta 7.77 % p.a on fixed deposit and mutual funds.
* The reason for change In ratios by more than 686% is primarily attributable to higher earnings reported during the year ended March

3%, 2024 as compared to the year ended March 31, 2025,

Ratios

Numarator

Denominator

Debt equity ratio {in times)

Gross total borrowings (before
deducling un-amortised loan
raising expense}

Equity share capital + Other equity

Debt service coverage ralic (in times)

Profit / (Joss) before exceplional
Hems and tax + Finance cosis +
Depreciation and amoriisation
expense — Tax expenss

Interest pald + Lease payments +
Principal repayments for long term
borrowings

Current ratio {in times)

Current assets {excluding Asset
classifled as held for sale)

Current liabilities {excluding
liabifities directly assaciated with
assets classified as held for sale)

Trade receivable turnaver rafio (In imas)

Revenue from operations

‘Average rade receivable

Inventory turnover ratio {in times)

(Cost of materials and services
consumed + Purchases of stock-In
trade + Changes in inventories of
finished goods, stock-in-trade and
work-in-pregress)

Average inventory

Trade payable turnover ratio (in times)

Purchases + other expenses -
service and product warranties

Average trade payable

Net capital turnover ratio {in times)

- Revenue from operations

Working capital

Retura on capital employed (%}

Profit / (Loss) befare exceptianal
ftems and tax, Finance costs and
Other income

(Equity share capital + Other
equity)-Goodwill - Other intangibie
assels-Intangible asset undar
development +Deferred tax
Liabilities(net)+Gross Borrowings

Return on equity (%)

Profit / {Loss) after tax

Average {otal equity

Net profit margin {%)

Profit / {Loss) afier tax

Revenue from operations

3,13 The Company does not have any transacfions with struck off companies under Companies Aci, 2013 or Companies Act, 1856, during

the year.

1'.’ o

ur't’[‘? ~
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3.14

3.15

316

347

3.20

3.21

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or enlities, including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitias identified in any manner vixatscever by or on beha¥f of the Cempany (Ullimate Beneficiaries) or
b, provide any guaranlee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including fareign entities (Funding Parly) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or othervdse) that the Company shail:

a. direclly or indireclly lend or invest in olher persons or enlities identified in any manner whaisoever by or on behalf ¢f the Funding Parly (Ulimate
Bensficiaries) or

b. pravide any guarantes, security or the fike cn hehalf of the ullimate beneficiaries.

No proceedings have been infliated on or are pending against the Gampany for holding besarni property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1088) and Rules made thereunder.

The Company has complied wilh the number of layers prescribed uader the Companies Act.

There is no income surrendeared or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the 1ax assessments under the [ncome Tax Act, 1961, that has
nat been recorded in the books of account,

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the cument or previous year.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 {'Code’) relating to employee benefits during empioyment and post-empioyment benelits received Presidentiai assent in
September 2020. The Cede has bean published in the Gazelte of India. Howavar, the date on which the certain provisions of the Code will come into effect and
the rules thereunder has not been natified. The Campany will assess the impact of the Code when #t cames into effect and will record any related impact in the
period the Code becomes effective,

The figures for the previous year have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary including for amendmeaats relating o Schadule il of the Companies
Act, 2013 for better understanding and comparabilly. The reclassificalions / regroupings do not have material impact on the standalone financial stalements.

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounding impact on current or previous Bnancial year,

For and on behailf of the Board of the Directors

For M.S.Krishnaswami & Rajan

M-/‘
e

M.S.Murali [ ‘ﬂ.,,,Sah/jeev Kumar Mohit Golcha

Partner — Chairman Additional Director and CEQ
Membarship No: 028453 R o DINIG7255308 Du»}:mﬁazm

UDIN: 25026453BMFXWL5195 j Y

Srinath N Ramachandran V
Chief Financial Officer Company Secrelary
7
/

Place:Chennai

Date: W g' 20‘2‘3"“-
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Gulf Ashley Motor Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
A. General information

Gulf Ashley Motor Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled
in India and governed by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). The Company's registered office is situated
at 1, Sardar Patel Road, Guindy, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India. The main activities of the Company are
those relating to sale and service of Commercial Vehicle and sale of Spare Parts.

B. Material Accounting Policies
3.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rou nded to the nearest
Crores, except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below these accounting policies.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services. '

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for
the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

3.2 Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116-
Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The
Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it
does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.



The material accounting policies are detailed below.

3.3 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contract with customer

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Ind AS 115 applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers
and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and
requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. Ind AS 115 requires
entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. It also specifies the
accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling
a contract.

3.3.1 Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally when the product is shipped to the customer. The revenue
from sale of vehicles is based on the terms of the tender.

The Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind
AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a
significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the
transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good
or service will be one year or less. Thus, there is no significant financing component.

3.3.2 Rendering of services

Revenue from services is recognised over a period of time as and when the services are rendered in
accordance with the specific terms of contract with customers.

3.3.3 Other Operating Revenues

Other operating revenues comprise of income from ancillary activities (eg: scrap sales) incidental to
the operations of the Company and is recognised when the right to receive the income is established
as per the terms of the contract.

3.3.4 Revenue in excess of invoicing (referred to as Unbilled revenue) are classified as Contract assets
while invoicing in excess of revenues (referred to as Unearned revenue) are classified as Contract
liabilities.

3.3.5 Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).



3.3.6 Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in
which such losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract.

3.4 Employee benefits
3.4.1 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution plans i.e., Company’s contribution to provident fund, employee
state insurance and other funds are determined under the relevant schemes and/ or statute and
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of incurrence when the services are rendered
by the employees.

For defined benefit plans i.e. Company’s liability towards gratuity (funded), other retirement/
terminations benefits and compensated absences, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Defined benefit costs are comprised of:

s Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

» Net interest expense or income; and

e Re-measurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line
item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service
costs.

Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability/ asset is reflected immediately in the balance sheet
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

3.4.2 Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of salaries, wages, performance
incentives, medical benefits and other short term benefits in the period the related service is
rendered, at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

3.5 Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

3.5.1 Current tax

Current tax is determined on taxable profits for the year chargeable to tax in accordance with the
applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 including other applicable tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted.



3.5.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.6 Segment Information

The company's primary segment as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment" is identified as business
segment based on nature of products, risk, returns and internal reporting business systems the
company is principally engaged in a single business segment viz. sale and service of Commercial
Vehicle and sale of Spare Parts.

3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost (net of eligible credit for GST) less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost of all civil works (including
electrification and fittings) is capitalised.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
forintended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Property, plant and equipment (including patterns and dies) where the cost exceeds Rs.10,000 is
capitalised and stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.




An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement profit
or loss.

3.8 Impairment of assets:

Plant, Property and Equipment are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or Company’s of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company determines whether there is any indication that its
tangible assets carried at cost have suffered an impairment loss with reference to their carrying
amounts. If any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated
and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

3.9 Investment:

Investment in joint venture is measured at deemed cost. However, provision for diminution is made
to recognize a decline, if any, other than temporary, in the carrying value of the investment.

3.10 Leases
The Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 116 is applicable from FY 2019-20 and it replaces Ind AS 17,

Ind AS 116 requires entity to determine whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of
the contract.

Ind AS 116 requires lessee to recognise a liability to make lease payments and an asset representing

the right to use asset during the lease term for all leases except for short term leases and leases of
low-value assets.

Ind AS 116 requires Lessee Company to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a
lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasona bly
certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and
thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract
will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as costs relating
to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the Company'’s
operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable




alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the
current economic circumstances.

At the commencement date, Company recognized a Right-Of Use asset measured at cost and a lease
liability measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the company has used its incremental
borrowing rate.

The cost of the right-of-use asset comprised of, the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee.

At the commencement date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise (a) fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable; (b) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date
(c) amounts expected to be payable by the company under residual value guarantees;(d) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and (e)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an
option to terminate the lease

Depreciation on Right to use asset and impairment losses if any is recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss. Computed on a straight-line basis over the period of lease. Also, the company separately
recognises interest on lease liability as a component of finance cost in Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.11 Inventories
Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of Vehicles and spares comprises cost of purchases and includes taxes and duties. Cost of
inventories also includes all other related costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cost of inventories are determined as follows,

. Stores, Spares, Consumable tools and components: on moving weighted average basis;
. Traded goods: on weighted average basis;

Cost of obsolete/ slow moving inventories are adequately provided for.

3.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event or it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the



present obligation, it’s carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

. A present obligation arising out of past events, when it is not probable that there will be
an outflow of resources that will be required to settle the obligation.

. A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

. A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the proba bility of outflow of
resources is remote.

= Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at
each Balance sheet date.

. Provision for litigation related obligation represents liabilities expected to materialise in

respect of matters in appeal.

3.13 Exceptional Items:

On certain occasions, the size, the type or incidence of an item of expense or income, pertaining to
the ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Company, in that event such income or expense is classified as an exceptional
item and accordingly disclosed in notes to the financial statements.

3.14 Fair Value Measurement:
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability,
Or
. Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lia bility.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.



The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

3.15 Financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.15 Financial assets

All regular purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

3.15.1 Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments on principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.



Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

The Company has determined the classification of debt instruments in terms of whether they meet
amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria based on the facts and circumstances that existed as of
the transition date. Accordingly, the Company has classified all debt instruments as of the transition
date at amortised cost.

The Company measures its investments in equity instruments of joint venture at cost in accordance
with Ind AS 27. At transition date, the Company had elected to continue with the carrying value of
such investments measured as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
3.15.2 Impairment of financial assets:

A Financial asset is regarded as credit impaired or subject to significant increase in credit risk, when
one or more events that may have a detrimental effect on estimated future cash flows of the asset
have occurred. The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss
on financial assets (i.e. the shortfall between the contractual cash flows that are due and all the cash
flows (discounted) that the company expects to receive).

3.15.3 De-recognition of financial assets:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the Statement of
profit and loss.

3.16 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
3.16.1 Classification as debt or equity

Equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.



3.16.2 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.

3.16.3 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method or at FVTPL.

3.17.3.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
. it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading, may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

] such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

. the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the
Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109
permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other Income' line item.

3.17.3.2 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial
liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the
“Finance Costs” line item.



The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Company’s
Management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities recognised in the financial statements that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The judgements, estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors including estimation of effects of uncertain future events that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates (accounted on a prospective basis) and recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods of
the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the Management
in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements and/or key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Taxation

Determining of income tax liabilities using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted requires the Management to estimate the level of tax that will be payable based
upon the Company’s/ expert’s interpretation of applicable tax laws, relevant judicial pronouncements
and an estimation of the likely outcome of any open tax assessments including litigations or closures
thereof.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, unabsorbed
depreciation and unused tax credits could be utilized.

In respect of other taxes which are in disputes, the Management estimates the level of tax that will be
payable based upon the Company’s/ expert’s interpretation of applicable tax laws, relevant judicial
pronouncements and an estimation of the likely outcome of any open tax assessments including
litigations or closures thereof.

Provisions against receivables

The Management makes judgement based on experience regarding the level of provision required to
account for potentially uncollectible receivables using information available at the balance sheet date.



